
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

May 28, 2015 

Present:  Select Board members:  Janet Cote, Rick Alpers, Paul Manganiello, Betsy Schneider, and Town 

Administrator Michael Capone.  Absent:  Shaun Lagueux 

The meeting was called to order at 6:01PM. 

Mr. Alpers made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from the May 14, 2015 

seconded by Ms. Schneider. With no further discussion, the Board voted 4-0 in favor of approving the 

minutes. 

Consent agenda: Ms. Schneider made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated May 28, 2015 to 

include the items named therein, seconded by Mr. Manganiello.  The Board voted 4-0 to approve the 

consent agenda. 

Town Clerk/Tax Collector, Raymah Simpson; Tax Deeding: 

Ms. Simpson updated the Board regarding properties discussed at the previous meeting.  Certified 

letters were sent and there have been no replies.  One agreement was made in which a $100 payment 

was received and a $100 per month payment will be made until paid in full.  One 2012 bill was paid in 

full.  Mr. Alpers commented that there is still one property that needs to be evaluated for cleanup and 

removal.  The Town Health Officer can go on the property and take a look.  Mr. Alpers asked if there was 

anyone living at one property that will be deeded.  Mr. Capone replied that the Police Department will 

do a welfare check at the property.   

Ms. Simpson asked the Board to sign abatement for $29.96. The abatement was signed. 

Old Town Hall Meeting Discussion: 

Mrs. Cote commented that the meeting should be somewhat facilitated and the goal is to get feedback 

from the Townspeople.  The tours start at noon and the discussion follows from 1:00 to 3:00.  The Board 

will facilitate different parts of the discussion.  Mr. Capone will take notes from the public and use a flip 

chart to write down their ideas.  Mr. Alpers suggested that a SWOT analysis be done to make the 

meeting more interactive.  This approach will get people talking and then the group can be brought back 

together and discuss the topics raised. The Board was favorable to this suggestion.  Mr. Capone 

commented that a Board member should facilitate each group during the SWOT analysis.  Mr. Alpers 

suggested that the SWOT analysis should take about 15 minutes and then start the whole group 

discussion.  Mrs. Cote will have the evaluation handed out to the public at the end of the meeting.  An 

agenda and an explanation of the SWOT analysis will be provided at the beginning of the meeting.  Mr. 

Capone updated the Board on the LCHIP grant.  An LCHIP representative walked through the building 

and reported that all the criteria have been met for reimbursement. The painting amounts to half the 



grant money so there will be money to do other things such as painting the interior, replacing the tin 

behind the chimney which is all rotted out, or redoing the doors.  

Town Administrator’s Report:  

There is a mandatory employee training on June 3rd regarding harassment and trip and fall protocol. The 

training will be delivered by our workers comp provider. Town buildings will be shut down from 9:00 to 

1:30.   

Melanie Shokal and Kelly Lacasse have been working with Plymouth State to bring an 

Accounting/Business Management intern in around the second week of June. The student intern will be 

working on the fixed asset project.  

Work is being done on section 106 of the Northern Pass.  There is still time for the public to submit 

information for review.  

The fireworks provider has not gotten back to the Town regarding options other than July 4th. There 

have been no firm numbers from the company regarding the cost of a show. Mr. Alpers commented that 

the Town should budget for future fireworks shows but he is hesitant to take money out of the current 

budget. Mr. Manganiello asked when the Lions Club discussed not funding the fireworks with the Board. 

Mrs. Cote replied that the Lions Club told the Town around October.  Mr. Alpers suggested that the cost 

for a barge for a show at the lake and the cost for a show downtown should be obtained. Mr. Capone 

replied that a show on land costs between $6,500 and $10,000.  Mr. Manganiello commented that the 

surrounding towns could be asked to help pay for the fireworks.   

Correspondence was received by the current workers comp provider for a two year extension with a 

guaranteed not to exceed premium increase.  The current provider is the only pooled provider in the 

state at this time.  A pooled provider offers more stable premium protection.  The Board has until July 

10th to make a decision. The Town Administrator recommends signing the extension.  Ms. Schneider 

asked if the contract ends in 2016 and if there is another company that does pooled coverage. Mr. 

Capone replied that this will extend it to 2017 and that there is no other company offering pooled 

coverage. Mr. Alpers commented that most small states only have one workers comp provider.  Ms. 

Schneider asked if there is credit back if there are not a lot of claims. Mr. Alpers replied that there is a 

premium holiday after the end of year audit and any credit can go towards next year’s bill or the Town 

can get a check. 

The Decorating Committee submitted their plan for the bench locations downtown.  Included in the plan 

are six benches with ground cover and a lilac bush in the common. Mr. Alpers suggested that the 

benches that are purchased be stored away for the winter and be black metal framed with composite 

slats.  Mr. Capone will get prices for the benches and brick pads to place them on.  

A letter from Mr. Piehler regarding use of the Town Hall was given to the Board. 

 



Select Board Items:   

Mr. Manganiello attended the Planning Board meeting. There was a proposal for a 55+ community that 

would include approximately 100 units and be year round.  Mr. Capone commented that this was a 

conceptual consultation. The Planning Board suggested that the applicant look strongly at the cluster 

language that is in the Zoning Ordinance.   

Mr. Manganiello commented that the Town should speak with Sharon Rogers with regard to Capstone 

projects and the permitting process in regards to the Pemi Trail.  Mr. Capone replied that he will follow 

up with her.  

Mr. Alpers asked if previously discussed policies will be ready for June. Mr. Capone replied that they will 

be in draft form for the June 11th meeting. Mr. Alpers asked for an update on the cell tower. Mr. Capone 

replied that he spoke with AT&T and Verizon. They are willing to talk with the Town once a site is 

developed for consideration.  

Mrs. Cote asked for an update on the head out angle parking.  Mr. Capone replied that the thermal 

plastic striping company is scheduled to come June 2nd, weather permitting, to restripe the parking lines 

and the crosswalks. Notices will be sent out to the public regarding this. Ms. Schneider asked how long 

the process will take.  Mr. Capone replied that it takes a couple of hours for the equipment to warm up 

and then the work goes pretty quickly.  

Public Comment:  none  

At 7:15, with no further public business to come before the Board, Mr. Alpers made a motion 

for the Board to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A:3 (a),(d) and (e) seconded by Ms. 

Schneider.  A roll call vote was held. The motion carried by a vote of 4-0. 

At 7:53 PM, Mr. Manganiello made a motion to adjourn.  The motion was seconded by Ms. 

Schneider.  The Board voted 4-0 in favor of adjournment. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 

____________________________        ____________________________ 

Janet Cote, Chair                  Shaun Lagueux, Vice Chair 

 

____________________________         ____________________________    

Rick Alpers, Select Board                  Paul Manganiello, Select Board 

 

____________________________ 

Betsy Schneider, Select Board 



 

 

 


